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—SOCIAL; Meeting Hall

-Gomple: in ,Slﬁ.wths £o:ne: B:&nklxn M&sqn;cvtanple (No. 107 Eb& :
: Wxa n\vell-maxnsa;ned Neotﬁlssa;cal.hnzldxng loéated on the east. szde

The front or Maxn\S;reet view (Photos 1 &<2) featurea a small lawn .
" ghat i# bisected by a.wide sidewalk which connétcts the Temple's main
entrance to the street. .Hedges line the ceataer: walk as well as the
~building%# front. The. s;dos and rear of the bnzld;ng are devo;d of
'landscapxﬁg.- ' i W L e ST T

e Theupr;nczpal QT Wast facadew(Photosw
stone-capped paragpt.‘complet with -an-ovo:
section with decorative goldier . .c i elow, thare is a
classxsally-xnsy;rgd gncrauge»entablaeu:eﬂmmeh ~terra cotta. co:nmce and
architrave and a brick friez ith-lacge bronze lettaers- y;eldzng MASONIC
TEMPLE. (Photo.3)...The entablature-is.supported by four engaged Ioaic
columns inantis. The ‘brick aand ter:a cotta antae with recessed center
panels are located on the building's corners while the fluted terra cotta
columns divide the facade into three bayss. ::Each bay is further defined by
raised brick edging and panels that frame tha ‘window reg:on. The northezn
and southern bays dre identidal in their window arrangement with casement
and sash units of identical 'widths ‘ocelirring at the first, secoand and
third levels., . The first story_ has ome~over—-one windows surmounted by .
leaded glass transoms with a triangular—-paned, cladsical fretwork motif.
The second.gtory windows are .leaded. transomed casements with a gsimilar
fretvork -degign. Leaded, fretworked casements conplete the third story
openings. - The central~bay»d1££e:suanwxhat the- main entrance is found at
‘the first level, marked -with -a- terra..cotta. pediment, corbels, scrollwozk
and the Masonic emblem. (Photo 4) The original doors have been ‘replaced
‘with a modern aluminum and glass unit. Finally, below the main level is
the raised brick basement with a stone cap .and the ma;n atazrcase. vhzch
is constructed of brick amd concrete. e

1-82) ;s articulated: by the
mngldzng. followed by a brick

o e e (X See continuation sheet




e Conying i has considersd the significance of -this property-in relation-to wm rtigms. . .. ...
- T nationatty VDswewido X tocatty
Applicable National Register Criteria [_JA [18 (¢ [Jo

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [J8 [Jc [(Jo [Je [Jr e

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance  Significant Dates
ARCHITECTURE ; : 1922-24
Cultural Affiiiation
N/A

The former Masonic Témple at 135 North Main Street in Fraaklin.
Indiana is_ou:standiﬁg”&ﬁéhgfueo-CIassical buildings erectad in Indiana
~~-during - the twentieth century. It is gignificant for its monumental design,
. fine craftsmanship and architectural detailiang. |

Evansville, Indiana. ' Built in 1922-24 by a Franklin £irm, Roy C. Bryaat
Company, the Temple is especially .importaat since it possesaes an . .. . -
:extraotdigasywleyelgof,in:egrity.-renainigg'yggynally_unchaugei since its
.dedication in April of 1924. - LT T E

The temple was designed by Clifford Shopbell of Shopbell & Comp

5!

~~~Historical Background:

_ _Ereemasonry came to Indiana in two streams, one from the south aand
“the other from the aortheast. : The southern sgtream originated.in Virginia
' and enteraed Indiana via Kentucky. .The northeastern stream coriginated in
""the states ‘of Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, New-Jersey and Conmecticut and
reached the state by way of Ohio. Im 1809, the first Indiana lodge,
‘Vincennes No. 15, was chartezred by the §rand Lodge of Kentucky. The name
“~wag ‘changed to Vincennes No. l.in 1818. . :

~ Midway through the nineteenth century, a move was made to organize a.
lodge “in Franklin, when oa January 1, 1850, eight men met under the
direction of Fabius Finch. Finch, a prominent citizen, s;a;q;legis%a:or
and Judge of the Circuit Court, became the first Worshipful Master.

The new Franklin Lodge originally met ina rented quarters aand.in January of
1869, moved into & new Masonic Temple in the third floor of the Vawter
- -Block. The Vawter Block, locatad at the northwest cornmer of Jeffersom and
- Hater Streets; wag-a-donation.from lodge member Johan T. Vawter.  In 1903,
"~ ¢he lodge acquired the third -story of the adjacent Tanaer Building.
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Verbal Boundary Doacﬂptlon
- Y-The* natu.nated pmpéﬁ:y is outlmed in red on: the enclosed nap cl:.p from Bergen s Atlas
of 1820-1900. ~Iot 5 is bound-by Main Street. to the first alley.east ‘of Main Street and
"~ the first a]:ley north- of Madisoén Street to "Lot 6 otherwise known as Lot 5. of Addition 1,
Ftcanklm Johnson County. Indlana L .
ERNEpa ods e .s« eonunuagon sheet

Boundary Justiﬂeanon

“,

'l‘he nommated property const:.tutes the entJ.re lot hlstoncally assoc:.ated w:.th the
Masonlc Tenple. , £ .

.

B (7500 comimiatn sheet

_—

organization 11 , a1 Sate _10/20/90
street & numbor _Mn_hlesz.m.chman_smt _telephone __(317) 6394534 e
city or town ___ Tndi 13 state I zip code 46202

also~--Gyneth Wilson Fredbeck, Johnson County Historical Society

susaro:teseoz23me 150 West Madison S_treet Franklin, IN 46131 Phone (317)736-4655
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The noxth facade (Phote §) is relatively utilitarian save the west
ernd 3nd the side aentrance. On the west ead and encompassing approximataely
cone-fourth of the norxthk facade's leag:h aza architecturslly detailed beys
that wrap the articulation of the principal (wast) facade around the
ccrnar. There are antae binding tke upit 2t the ends which .in tura
gupport the emtablature. Furthermore, there arze twe window bays at each
of the three levels, with the gecond level wirndows and the eastern window
on the fizst level being brickad—-in. Orn inepectiag the original plans,
these bDays were interded te be bliad {unglazed) windows aand thusg are
otiginal. The gide entrance (Pheto 5), located in the easternm one~third
of tic north facade, iec enhanced by a terra cotta surround, sidelights and
& lavrge six—sgsection trangom. The remaiunder of tha north facade contaius
singie and double unit sash and casament windows in random groupings (the
small upper windows light the Asylum Chapter Lodge Room).

The south facade (Photo 7) mirrors che north except that no windecwvs
are absent from the architecturally detziled hays &nd there is nc side
eatrance. The rear or eeast facade is purely atilitaxian.,. It has rendexly
placed double~hung windows. To the norxth is & fire escepe with doorxz at
the secoud and third stories and an aexrerior chianey is roughly cantered
o ¢he east end wall.

The interior of the Temple, like the exterior, is virtually ideamntical
to the criginal fabric. Upon entering the small (4'x 10f) Vestibule omu
the firxst floor, the visitor is faced with a apacioua lobby (19'x 18') and
Maip Eall (Photo 8, 18'x 66'). Located along the south gide of the Hall
fron wast to east are the Silence Roor (22'x 18'), the Secretarial Area
(15'x 13') and administrative support aress. Aloang the north gside from
wa@st to east are the Lounging Rcom (38'x 18';, Game Room (15'x 18') and
Ladies Parlor (17'x 18'). Completing the main ievel on the east end is
"the BRilliard Room (22'x 57'). All of thesa rooms have plaster ceilings
and wallg with hardwood baseboards and doors and painted crown moldings.
The flooring is cork checkerboazd in two shades of brown, and the door
facings are pilastered with entablature headers. Of special interest is
the main staircase (Photo 9), the built-in Secretarial counter (Photo 10),
the Lounging Room fireplaze (Photo 1l1) and the Billiard Room entrance
(Photo 12). The main staircase, located just inside of the Main Hall
elong the south side, has square posts and balustrades, harmomizing with
the door treatmant while the Secretarial counter hag very nice recessad
pauel cabinets. The Lounging Room fireplace is constructed of brick witk
& battered insgset and decorative arched niche above the wood mantle.
Finally, the Billiard Room antrance is defined by two sets of Freach doors
and a central panel containing & divided~light window and raised-panel
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waingscoting. Topping off all three gections is a divided-light transcm. -

. The gsecond floor contains the Blue Lodge Rocm (Photo 13, 23'x 48!') at
the front or west end, the Red Cross Room (16°x 30') as well as gtair hall
‘and praeparation rooms. Occupying the east end of the second floor is the
Aaylum Chapter Lodge Room (48°x 57'), plus a stage (9'x 19'). All of the
second floor rooms are finished with placter walls and ceilings and with
doors, trim and basebcards idemtical to the first floor examples. The
gsame cork flooring extends to tke sacond floor with the exception of the
Asylun Chaptar Lodge Room which ie carpeted. The Agylum Chapter Lodge
Raoom (Photos 14 & 15) -ie noteworthy due to certain desgign features. Tte
prominent stage at the east end hus pilaeters at the corners and a lazge
tudor arched opening with a decorative plaster surround. Switch—back
‘gtaircases on both sides of the stage ascend to the third or balcony
lavel, the balcony being supported by square wood columns in the same mcde
as the door facings. Located in the solid balcony railing are circularw
meadallions which are ceatered absve each column. Caxmpleting the room aad
adding wveight to the expensive apace are levge plaster ceiling beams wkich
are orientaed along the north-south azis of the zoom,

The third level iz comprised of an Armory (23'x 57') at thae west end,
gtore rcoms in the middle and the Upper Asylum Chapter Lcdge Room orx
balcony at the east end. All of tke areas Lave plaster ceilings and
wallg, the same herdwood baseboards, doors and facings and the cork
flooring as mentioned previously. The balcony is the significant space
with seats along the north, south and west ands and wide aisle between the
- geats and the walls (Photo 15). Additionally, there are
diagonally~oriented stairs that cut across the northwest and southwaest
ccrners to give access to the balcony seating.

The last floor of the building is the bacement which is couprised of
a large Banquet Room (Photo 16, 38'x73'), Kitchen (22'x 19') and various
support and mechanical areas. The basement is finished with plaster
walla, acoustic ceiling tiles, hardwood baseboards, doors amnd trim and a
coacrete floor. Of spacial interest are the original kitcken cabinets
{Photo 17).
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‘Soon after the .turn of the ceatury there arose a movemeat to
construct a homs for aged Masona and widows and orpbans of Masoms. In
1909, after many pleas from the Masons and especially from the ladies of
the Eastern Star., the Masonic Brethren deemad it apprepriate to establish
& Masonic Home Fund. Next came the arducus task of selecting a site and

.aftar an often bitter competition, PFraaklim was chcsen. The cormerstone
for the Hcme was %aid on October 21, 1915, and the doors were opened on
Qctober 21, 1916, The opening of the home iz turm led to a desire for
2 new Texple in Franklim. As repozted ir & local newpaper, the purpcse of
erecting this notable building was "mot for their persocnal satigfactiocn or
that they might boast of it to Masons elsewhere. It has been the geneval
feeling of all local members that since the Masons of Indiana have honcred
this comnunity so signally in establishing the great State Home hexe, that
ic wag a duty of Franklin Masons tc¢ eract hers, a Temple that would be 2
credit not only to this community, but to the Masons of the whole
stata."

Consequently, on April &, 1919, the lsdge purchased Lot 5 on the
original plot of the town, now city of Franklian, from Ida L. LaGrange fox
$4,500. A Temple Building Asscciaticn was formed in 1920 to raiege the
funds and procure the plang for the new Teaple. These tacks completed,
ground was broken on March 24, 1922, and two years later, om April 14,
1924, the new Tempie was dedicated. Although the membership of the lodge
had waned during the years of the Civil War and the finaacial panic of
1873, a member stated at the 1924 dedication, "We leave the old Temple
with s3ix hundred aad gweaty true and loyal brocthezs to face a future
bright with promise."”

The original comstruction estimates were in the range of $§169,000 to
$196,000 and thus well over the anticipated $100,000. Therefore. the
Taemple Building Association postpomed comstruction until costs were
lowered, which was realized with a final comstruction coantract of
$104,106. A major help in lowering costs was the utilization of
volunteers, thirty-five to forty, who excavated the basemeat and spent
four days removing the £ill with wagons and teams. This one effort saved
$4,000 and the women of the Eastern Star contribuced by cooking and
serving dinner each day. However, the greatest accomplishment of the
volunteer effort was the spirit that was inspired-—anjeven greater
interest and enthusiasm in the Temple's comstructioaz.

The architect., Clifford Shopbell, was born December 8, 1871, in
Princeton, Indiana. He studied at Southern Indiana University and vorked
on the engineering corps of the Evansville and Terra Haute Railrocad.
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"Shopbell gpent time iz several Indiamapclis architectural f£irms before
opaning his own practice, Shopbell & Company. in Evansville in 1894 with
bis partner W.J. Harris. It was Shopbeil & Compuany that received the
coxniszion for the Temple in 1921. A3 e note, the name of the fixm was
changed to Shopbell, Fowler and Thole in 1924, after the death of Mz.

~ Barris and was congequently known as such at the time of the Temple's
dedication in April of 1924. Shopbell dssgigned several wuildings in
Evansgville now listed on'the National Register including the Americzar
_Trust and Savings Bank (1904), Court Building (1909), Buckingham .
Apartments (1911), Mzsoaic Temple (1912), former IMCA (1913), Soldiers az
Sailors Memorial Coliigeum (1916), Evansville Municipal Market (1918) .and
the 0ld Fellwork Aute Company (1922). Shopbell designed resideaces on the
KNeticnel Registecz includegthe John W. Boehne House  (1912) aad the Michael
2. Helfrich House (1920).

The work of the countractor, Roy C. Bryant is reflecced in many local
public buildings. His firmw was involved with the conztruction at Fraakiia
College, the Indiarca Masgonic Home, Hopewell High Scheol, Johangon Couxznty
" Ipfirmary, Franklin Public Library, Fraaklia High Schcol Gymnasium,
‘Hecuglard Canaing Company 3ard the Suckow Milling Company. Otkex
ingtitutions demonstrating confidence in his firm's work were Hanover
College (Madison, IN), Indiana Boys' School (Plainfield, IN), Iadiaxa
Soldiers and Sailors Orphan Home (Plainfiald, IN) aand the Indiana Boa=zd of
Agriculture Building at the State Fairgrouads (Indianapolis, IN).

Once the Temple was complated, the members reached & decision as to
the function of the new building. A tewspaper account revealed, "The idea
- that these men had in mind was a Temple that would be purely Masonic in
which commercialism should find no part...(and should)...be the
exemplification o{othe Masonic idea of helpfulness, ancouragement and
comfort for all."™ The only intended use other that for Masonic rites
and purposes was to supply theliovn of Franklin with a much needed and
long~-avaitad commuaity ceater.

Over the years, the multiplicity of uses of the Temple have served
the community of Franklin very well, from offering space for coammuaity
banquets to school related activities to funerals for dignitaries (i.e.,
Luther Short, former Ambassador to Turkey). Furthermore, the Temple was
used by Camp Atterbury during World War II ag headquartars for the
Americar Red Cross where surgical dressings and kit bags ygze prepared,
meetings wera held and blood was collected and processed. Finally, it
appears that the building has come full-circle, now being owned by the
Johnson Couaty Historical Society and used to house the Johunson County
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- BHistorical Museum. It was the Templé that waa used for the County's first
..organizaed showing of artifacts in ‘1923--~the County®s Centennial
Celebration-—~prior to the Temple's dedication.

In essence, the Fraakiin Masonic Temple, an outstanding example among
Indiana's Masonic structures, has garnerad much gignificance, largely
bacause of the quality and monumentality of its architectural design aad
the in:eg:ity of the buildimg. It is alsoc outstaading among Neo—Claasical
‘wuildings in Franklin. Other Neo—Classical buildiage in Franklin -include
‘the former Citizen's National Basmk at 10 Raet Jefférson Street and the
Carnegie Library at 198 East Madison Street. These structures, irn
conperigon to the Masoanic. Temple, were treated with simpler, less
monumental details. Both are conatructed of brick with lzmeatone ornamanc_
and both are considerably smaller tkan tha Kasonic Temple. Additicnally,
the Temple's finely crafted Ionic cclumng, door and window guxroundz and

oznate cormice exhibit the fine architectural c:attsmanahlp and :
monumentality of the structure. While both the Baank and uxbrary havs¢;”
architectural detailing, the fiumer ard more grand details of the Teuple
distinguish it frcm othex Franklin -exzmplas. Furtnermore, the arcnztect
Shopbelli practiced or a regiomnal basis, evideunced by the comntract on &
building so far fzom bis home base of Evansville.  And lastly., the
"dintegrity of the structure is guperd which shows the respect that these
Masons and the comamunity had for their Templs, indicating the high statuxe
of Freemasonry in ‘the commumity of Franklin. e B
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